
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

May 6, 2015 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 12
Monthly Investment Report Ending April 30, 2015

Investments-Council 25
Proclamation - Proclaiming May 17-23, 2015 as National Public
Works Week

Proclamation 29
Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control
Board for Possible Use of Public Water System as a Source of
Potable Water for Water Haulers

Staff Report - Request to Sell Potable Water to Certified
Water Haulers 30

Water Conservation Implementation Plan
Staff Report - Water Conservation 32

Letter from Fresno County Board of Supervisors Henry Perea,
District 3 Requesting Resolution for Support of Central Valley
Drought

Letter Requesting Resolution - Perea 41
Resolution Approving Agreement for Auditing Services for Fiscal
Years 2014/15 Through 2018/2019

Staff Report - Auditor RFP 44
Second Presentation of General Fund Preliminary Budget for
Fiscal Year 2015/2016

Staff Report - Preliminary GF Budget 80
Presentation of Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal
Year 2015/2016

Staff Report - Preliminary Enterprise Budget 84
Letters Endorsed by the Mayor on Behalf of the City - Latino
Water Coalition to Governor Brown; Kerman United Health
Center

Letter to Gov. Brown 87
Letter Kerman United Health Center 99

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 20, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Presentation on Prop 218 by the Fresno County Mosquito Vector and Vector Control 
Board (KM) 

 
REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: May 6, 2015 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: April 26, 2015 - May 09, 2015: $127,504.85; Retro Pay & Other: 
$1,209.20; Overtime: $3,911.62; Standby: $1,239.32; Comp Time Earned: 35.25 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos.6356-6449: $249,346.68 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: 6390-$3,088.58 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending April 30, 2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investments-Council 
 

E. SUBJECT: Proclamation - Proclaiming May 17-23, 2015 as National Public Works Week (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion proclaim May as National Public Works Week. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Proclamation 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 None 
 

 
 

3



4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control Board for Possible 
Use of Public Water System as a Source of Potable Water for Water Haulers (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider water system as a possible source of potable 
water for water haulers. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Request to Sell Potable Water to Certified Water Haulers 
 

B. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Implementation Plan (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receive Water Conservation Plan and provide direction to 
staff accordingly. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Water Conservation  
 

C. SUBJECT: Letter from Fresno County Board of Supervisors Henry Perea, District 3 
Requesting Resolution for Support of Central Valley Drought (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review request and by motion adopt resolution for 
Support of Central Valley Drought. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Letter Requesting Resolution - Perea 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Auditing Services for Fiscal Years 
2014/15 Through 2018/2019 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review summary of proposals and by motion adopt 
resolution for auditing services and authorize the City Manager to sign the Engagement 
Letter. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Auditor RFP 
 

E. SUBJECT: Second Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council to review the preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016 and make any recommendations for changes. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Preliminary GF Budget 
 

F. SUBJECT: Presentation of Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council to review the preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for 
fiscal year 2015/2016 and make any recommendations for changes. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Preliminary Enterprise Budget  
 

4



5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Letters Endorsed by the Mayor on behalf of the City - Latino Water Coalition to 
Governor Brown; Kerman United Health Center 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 45957 Public Employee Evaluation - Title: City Manager 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 6, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City 
Attorney Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, 
Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:36 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
NF/BN 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved GY/RA 
(3-0-2) NF/BN 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 6:40 p.m.  
NF arrived 

A. Letter from Tina Guidry Requesting Changes to Kerman Municipal Code 
Related to Domestic Animals (MR) 

Presented 
 
7:00 p.m.  
BN arrived 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL VFW - Parker 
Brown 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved GY/BN 
excepting - 6231 & 
6270 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll Reports: 

 
March 29, 2015 - April 11, 2015: $121,629.63; Overtime: $3,091.32; 
Standby: $988.30; Comp Time Earned: 1.50 
April 12, 2015 - April 25, 2015: $121,509.13; Overtime: $3,348.01; 
Standby: $1,221.40; Comp Time Earned: 14.25 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
 

 

6



C. SUBJECT: Warrants   

1. Nos. 6164-6355: $519,439.98 Approved 6231 
GY/BN (4-0-1) RA 

2. Excepting - 6231 - $3,111.31; 6270 - 374.55 Approved 6270 
NF/RA (4-0-1) GY 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

D. SUBJECT: Proclamation - Proclaiming May as Building and Safety Month   

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion proclaim May as Building and 
Safety Month 

 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney (LP)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution appointing Hilda 
Cantu Montoy as City Attorney and authorizing the Mayor to sign the legal 
services agreement on behalf of the City. 

Res 15-13 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing and Reappointing Members to 
Community Service and Recreation Commission (PG) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution 
appointing/reappointing Commissioners, Teixeira, Amaro and Garcia to 
the Community Services and Recreation Commission. 

Res 15-14 

G. SUBJECT: Resolution Affirming Use of Sole Source Purchase for the Kids 
Climbing Wall Using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution affirming that 
Sole Source procurement complies with local and government 
procurement requirements for the purchase of Playground Climbing Wall 
Materials using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. 

Res 15-15 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: Abatement Hearing for the Removal of Weeds and Rubbish (CK) Approved GY/RA 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council open hearing to receive objections or 
protests from property owners, close the hearing, and adopt by motion 
resolution ordering the abatement of weeds and rubbish. 

Res 15-16 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 14452 W. 
Kearney Boulevard (JJ) 

Approved GY/BN 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
Agreement for Utility Service for Manuel and Maria Hernandez at 14452 
W. Kearney Boulevard. 

Res 15-17 

7



B. SUBJECT: Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for 
Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 (JJ) 

Approved NF/RA 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution of intention to 
levy and collect the annual assessments for Landscape and Lighting 
District No. 1 and set the date for the required public hearing for June 17, 
2015. 

Res 15-18 

C. SUBJECT: Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 (TJ) 

Presented  

RECOMMENDATION: Council to review preliminary General Fund Budget 
and provide input and direction accordingly. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. 1st Annual Almond Festival - May 9, 11 a.m. - 3 p.m., Kerckoff Park  

B. Liberty Elementary Mock Student Council Meeting - May 12, 10 a.m.  

C. Sebastian's Open House - May 14, 5-8 p.m. 7600 N Palm Ave. Fresno  

D. Westside Veterans Memorial Building Opening Ceremony - May 16, 10 
a.m., 1020 S. Siskiyou Avenue 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION 9:15 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 45956.9(a) Conference with Legal Counsel - 
Pending Litigation: Pacific Mountain Partners 

No reportable 
action. 

B. Government Code Section 45957 Public Employee Evaluation - Title: City 
Manager 

Council gave CM 
very positive 
evaluation. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN  

8. ADJOURNMENT Approved GY/BN 
(5-0-0) Adjourned 
10:32 p.m. 

 
MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: May 7, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               745.19            

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               (52,000.00)      -                   -                         309.44            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               (46,000.00)      -                   -                         263.78            

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                         -                  

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         877.40            

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         748.60            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   -                         831.28            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         1,700.00          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               (98,000.00)      -                   -                         1,960.00          

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             (149,000.00)    -                   -                         724.73            

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         818.52            

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       147,251.37             1,326.62          

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,093.10               343.94            

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       150,580.50             3,000.00          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00        50,156.00               750.00            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,242.50               1,067.00          

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,120.00             700.00            

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,589.05               1,534.50          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,772.00             2,250.00          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,215.65               523.97            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,528.36               688.50            

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,336.00               672.00            

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,153.00             500.00            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,851.64               940.00            

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,692.00             1,000.00          

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       203,242.00             3,700.00          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,442.00             523.22            

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00        96,000.00        96,345.60               -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,407.57               485.60            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       197,215.20             1,469.21          

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,638.96               882.00            

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,882.88             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,462.16               3,041.21          

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,562.00             3,033.95          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,570.24               476.05            

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,740.52               2,701.24          

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,811.00             -                  

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       249,240.00             1,537.26          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       249,403.68             1,854.91          

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,145.04               -                  

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00      150,000.00       150,213.00             -                  

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00      248,000.00       248,414.16             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,210.70               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        98,811.96               2,217.13          

American Express Bank, FSB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,605.64               790.44            

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,734.02               -                  
25



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       251,467.04             4,712.00          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       202,312.00             1,955.34          

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       101,344.00             -                  

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00      150,000.00       150,243.00             -                  

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,504.70               -                  

Average Rate 1.25%
Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00          296,000.00      -                       5,094,000.00    5,127,550.24          53,655.03        

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             2,232.11          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00          296,000.00      -                       5,294,000.00    5,327,550.24          55,887.14        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51             150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51             -                  -                       150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40          2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72            286.72             286.72            

8/31/14 282.39            282.39             282.39            
9/30/14 231.47            231.47             231.47            

10/31/14 236.58            236.58             236.58            
11/30/14 215.31            215.31             215.31            
12/31/14 213.78            213.78             213.78            
1/31/15 255.68            255.68             255.68            
2/28/15 270.06            270.06             270.06            
3/31/15 296.31            296.31             296.31            
4/30/15 247.49            247.49             247.49            

-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
8/28/14 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
9/12/14 (500,000.00)    (500,000.00)     
9/19/14 (160,000.00)    (160,000.00)     
10/2/14 350,000.00      350,000.00       

10/16/14 (165,000.00)    (165,000.00)     
11/19/14 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
12/29/15 200,000.00      200,000.00       

1/2/15 400,000.00      400,000.00       
1/7/15 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     
1/9/15 (20,000.00)      (20,000.00)       

1/22/15 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
1/29/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
1/30/15 700,000.00      700,000.00       
3/20/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
3/25/15 (75,000.00)      (75,000.00)       
3/26/15 150,000.00      150,000.00       
4/1/15 (60,000.00)      (60,000.00)       
4/6/15 (496,000.00)    (496,000.00)     26



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

4/27/15 550,000.00      550,000.00       
-                   

2,901,993.40          1,535.79          -                       2,903,529.19    2,903,529.19          2,535.79          

Subtotal All City Investments 4,798,000.00          296,000.00      -                       5,094,000.00    5,127,550.24          53,655.03        

27



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51             131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                

8/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                
9/30/14 4.03                4.03                 4.03                

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 9/29/14 (131,397.43)    (131,397.43)     
10/1/14 (4.03)               (4.03)                

-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Total Investments 5,280,214.02          164,611.49      -                       5,444,825.51    5,478,375.75          55,900.09        
Market Value Adjustment 33,550.24               

164,611.49       
164,611.49       

-                   

28



CITY OF KERMAN 

Proclamation 
Building and Safety Month 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department provides services for our community and are a 
vital and integral part of our citizens' everyday lives; and 

WHEREAS, the support of the community is vital to the efficient operation o public 
works systems and programs such as water, sewers, streets, fleet maintenance, building 
maintenance, wastewater treatment, and solid waste collection; and  

WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these 
facilities and services; and  

WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities is vitally dependent upon the 
efforts and skill of public works officials; and  

WHEREAS, the efficiency and effectiveness of the qualified and skilled staff contribute to 
the quality of life that residents and visitors alike enjoy and rely upon from the City of Kerman, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council that we recognize 
and extend appreciation to our dedicated and skilled staff and hereby proclaim the week of 
May 17-23, 2015 as "National Public Works Week"  

AND, BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that the City Council requests that all citizens and 
civic organizations acquaint themselves with the issues involved in providing public works 
services to our community and to recognize the contributions which our public works 
employees make every day to our health, safety, comfort and quality of life. 

 

 
Dated: May 20, 2015      _____________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 

29



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 20, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore 
Subject: Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control Board for Possible Use of Public Water 

System as a Source of Potable Water for Water Haulers 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council consider water system as a possible source of potable water for water haulers. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
California is in the fourth year of a severe drought and many domestic private wells are going dry. As a result, many of 
the affected well owners are installing small tanks to be periodically filled with water from water haulers to meet their 
basic household needs. Likewise, there are community water systems experiencing diminished source capacity and may 
be unable to meet their customer’s basic health and safety needs through the summer. While there are available certified 
water haulers, the haulers are having difficulty securing sources of water to fill their tanks. Therefore, the State of 
California Division of Drinking Water is trying to establish a list of public water systems throughout the state that are 
willing to sell water to the certified water haulers.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The cost of providing water to water haulers would be at the new rate of $1.00 per 1,000 gallons. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Per the State Board’s recently adopted emergency water conservation regulation, any water sold from public water 
systems to water haulers is excluded from the total potable water production values that are required to be reported 
to the State Board on a monthly basis and will not be counted against your water conservation requirements. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
ATTACHEMENTS 
 
 A. Request Letter

30



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control Board 
  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 
 

 

 

31



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 20, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore, Public Works Director 
Subject: Water Conservation Implementation Plan 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council receive Water Conservation Plan and provide direction to staff accordingly. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On April 1, 2015, Governor Brown signed an Executive Order mandating water conservation measures to reduce 
water usage by 25% statewide. The Executive Order directed the State Water Resources Control Board to come up 
with new restrictions. The State Water Resources Board adopted new restrictions last week that will go into effect 
June 1, 2015. The City of Kerman was placed in the highest tier with a target reduction of 36%. The City reduced 
water consumption by 9.2% between 2013 and 2014, far short of the 25% target assigned by the state. Staff has 
prepared a draft Water Conservation Implementation Plan aimed at meeting the state mandated water reduction 
target. 
 

 OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City of Kerman will have to implement more aggressive water conservation measures in order to meet the 
assigned target reduction of 36% by March of 2016. It is unclear what fines the state might impose should the City 
fall short of meetings its assigned target. The Governor’s Executive Order calls for fines of up to $10,000 per day for 
not meeting targets. 
 
WATER USAGE 
 
Table 1 shows total water usage for 2014 by sector, and Chart 1 graphically illustrates percentages. The City used 
1,054.4 million gallons (mg) in 2014. The residential sector is the largest water user consuming 738.1 mg or 70% of 
the total water usage. The other category is the second largest water user consuming 187.1 mg or 17.7% of the total 
followed by schools, city parks and street median. Although street medians represent a small percentage (1.2%) of 
total water used, the state is prohibiting cities from watering ornamental turf in street medians. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  
 
 Table 1 – Water Usage (2014) 

 
 Note: “Other” includes commercial, industrial, office, institutional, etc. 
 
 
Chart I – Percentage of Water Used by Sector (2014) 

 

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  

Table 2 – Water Savings (June – February) 
          

       
 
Chart 2 – Water Savings (June-February) 
 

 
 

 
  

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  
Table 3 - Water Conservation Targets 

 
 
Chart 3 – Water Conservation Targets 
 

 
 

  

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  
Table 4 - Water Conservation Projections to Meet Emergency Mandates 
 

 
 
 
Chart 4 – Water Conservation Projections to Meet Emergency Mandates 
 

  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  
DISCUSSION  
 
The State’s mandatory water conservation measures that become effective as of June 1, 2015, include: 
 

• Mandatory 25% reduction in water usage statewide 
• Mandatory 36% target reduction in water usage for the City of Kerman 
• Prohibition of using potable water for irrigation of ornamental grass in street medians; 
• Prohibition of using potable water for irrigation outside of new home construction without drip or micro-spray 

systems 
• Prohibiting using potable water for outdoor irrigation during the 48 hours following a measureable rain event 
• Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers on request 
• Hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of not having towels and linens laundered daily. 
• Notify customers about leaks that are within the customer’s control 
• Report on compliance and enforcement to the State Water Board.  

 
The Public Works Department has established some short, mid and long-term strategies to implement the 
mandatory water reductions set forth by the state. When the State looked into the individual communities’ water 
usage on a per capita basis, Kerman was listed in the top tier in usage with an R-GPCD (Residential Gallons Per 
Capita per Day) of 217.9 gallons. Because of this Kerman’s mandated target reduction in water usage compared to 
2013 is 36%. We have reduced usage to this point by 9.2%. 
 
To be successful in meeting this mandate, the City will need the cooperation of everyone in Kerman to increase the 
water savings another 26.8% from the 2013 water usage. In doing so, our goal is to preserve the mature trees, 
shrubs and bushes throughout the City while using as little water as possible to do so. In the future, there are things 
we can do to make this happen: 
 
It is important to note that most of the City’s street medians consist of ornamental turf and trees. The City will need 
to strategically stop watering the turf while preserving the existing trees. As shown in Attachment ‘A’, a majority of 
the street medians have separate stations with bubblers for the trees but there are a few median that only have pop 
up sprinklers. These will require staff to strategically cap some of the sprinklers that irrigate the turf while leaving 
others open to water the trees and shrubs. This will result in some of the turf receiving water without having to 
reconfigure the irrigation systems to add bubblers. 
 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
Staff has prepared some short, mid and long-term strategies for reducing water usage today and in the future. Some 
of the strategies can be implemented rather easily while others may require time and significant resources to 
implement. 
 
Short Term: 

• Strategically cap pop-up spray irrigation that irrigate turf and leave others open to water trees and shrubs 
• Stop watering turf in all street medians and use bubblers to water trees. 
• Begin to systematically remove turf with sod cutter in all street medians and evaluate cost to replace with drip 

irrigation and drought tolerant plants or synthetic turf or let turf go brown 
• Greater enforcement of the current two day per week outdoor watering schedule including fines for repeat 

violators 

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  

• Consider one day per week watering schedule 
• Greater enforcement of repairs to leaks detected including fines for not repairing leaks within a time set or by 

retaining a handyman to make the repairs 
• Require local builders to install drip and micro sprayers to water lawns and planter areas 
• Complete the installation of approximately 700 new water meters on residential services. Using data from our 

initial meter installation projects it is estimated that water savings could be 6,094,800 gallons per year 
through leak detection and repair. 

• Explore the development of a turf replacement and drip irrigation rebate program to incentivize greater water 
conservation  

• Lower operational pressure in the water system. This would have to be cleared through the fire department 
• Aggressively market the FigTree/PACE and HERO program to fund water conservation improvements 
• Conduct water efficiency audits and make repairs to any leaks within the system 
• Establish a link on the City website for resident to report water wasting 
• Establish an anonymous water wasting hot line with voice mail 

 
Mid-Term 

• Borrow funds to complete water meter installation on remaining 700 services in the City 
• Amend the Zoning Ordinance to reduce the percentage of turf in new residential projects and encourage 

synthetic turf or xeriscape landscaping 
• Amend building code to require more water conservation measures in new construction projects 
• Develop an outreach program to educate the citizens of Kerman on the use of drought tolerant plants and 

trees  
• Convert all street medians to drought tolerant planting material and install drip irrigation systems with mulch 

to reduce evaporation during hot weather. We have submitted an application with the California Conservation 
Corp for assistance with this project and the estimated water savings would be 8 million gallons when 
complete 

 
Long-Term 

• Finalize agreement with FID to purchase surface water for purple pipe landscape irrigation system 
• Upgrade the wastewater treatment plant to a tertiary treatment facility so that reclaimed water can be used to 

irrigate parks, medians and public landscaped areas 
 

Fiscal Impact 
 

The City is required to reduce water usage by an additional 26.8% over 2013. This will be a difficult task to achieve 
given the short time frame. The unintended consequence of greater water conservation is the reduction of revenues 
to fund operations of the water division. Although pumping less water will save some money on power and chlorine, 
the overall impact would be a reduction in revenues and the need to raise rates. 
 
Staff estimates that if the annual water usage is reduced by 311 million gallons (and every water service was 
metered), the potential loss of revenue would be approximately $248,000 at the current cost of $0.80 per thousand 
gallons. The pumping cost and chlorine expense would be reduced by about 30% or approximately $88,350 for a 
potential net loss of $159,650. The potential loss of this revenue may result in a reduction in operating costs and/or 
rate increase. The operation of the water system has some fixed costs no matter how much water is pumped (i.e., 
testing, state fees, debt service, etc.). 

 

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments:  
 

A. Map of the Street Medians and Irrigation Systems 
 

 
 
 
 
  

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 9 
Water Conservation Implementation Plan 
 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
Street Median and Irrigation Systems 

 
 

40



41



 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN URGING THE GOVERNOR’S 
 CONTINUATION OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY FOR 2015 DROUGHT 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor proclaimed a statewide emergency due to unprecedented drought 
conditions in the State of California; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 28, 2014 the Fresno County Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution in support of the Governor's 
proclamation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 24th day of March, 2015, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Fresno, proclaimed the existence of 
a local emergency and requested the Governor of California make available any and all State assistance programs and seek 
additional Federal assistance programs to provide relief to the individuals, growers, businesses, public agencies and private 
agencies that were harmed by this disaster; as a result of local resources being inadequate to cope with the effects of said 
emergency; and the combined forces of the other political subdivisions of the State were required to assist the County to combat 
the effects of said emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 19th day of September, 2014, the Governor issued Executive Order (EO) B-26-14 authorizing the 
Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) to provide California Disaster Assistance Act funding, as deemed appropriate, 
for local government assistance to provide emergency water supplies to households without water for drinking and sanitation 
purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 27TH day of March, 2015, the Governor signed emergency legislation - AB 91 and AB 92 -that fast-tracks 
more than $1 billion in funding for drought relief and critical water infrastructure projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman appreciates the Governor's efforts to deal with this statewide emergency and crisis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said emergency has continued and escalated with a cumulated impact on this City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, local and statewide resources continue to be inadequate to cope with the effects of said emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, of California's total developed water supply of 82.5 million acre-feet, 47.8% is being made available to 
environmental purposes, 41.5% is designated for agricultural uses and 10.8% is allocated to urban uses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all beneficial uses and users within California have been curtailed - in part or in whole - by the State Water 
Board or local and regional allocation and entitlement decisions in response to the drought; and 
 
  WHEREAS, On average, agricultural water supplies between Redding and Bakersfield have been reduced by 70%, with 
31% of California's irrigated farmland, or 2,831,000 acres, receiving zero water supply allocations; and 52.8% of the state's 
irrigated farmland receiving 20% or less of normal surface water supplies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, many members of the public believe water made available by the State of California for environmental 
purposes has remained unregulated and, in many cases, has resulted in urban and agricultural users losing potential water 
supplies to keep environmental uses "whole"; and  
 
 WHEREAS, 2015 is the second consecutive year in which some Central Valley Project contractors within Fresno County 
have endured zero water supply allocations, which agricultural contractors and users are being most negatively affected; and 
 

42



 WHEREAS, that these circumstances compel the City of Kerman to request the Governor to pursue  all feasible actions to 
reduceie the state's water consumption by imposing curtailments of water supplies currently dedicated to the environment and 
fishery habitat that are comparable to those now being mandated and burdening urban and agricultural contractors and users; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Governor be requested to direct the State Water Board to take all feasible actions in making changes in 

Delta water operations to provide additional water supplies for urban and agricultural users; and  
2. That the Governor be requested to meet and confer with the U.S. Department of the Interior to exercise the greatest 

possible flexibility in biological opinions regulating operations affecting endangered species under the federal 
Endangered Species Act; and  

3. That the Governor be requested to be supportive of Congressional legislative efforts being undertaken by Senator 
Feinstein to enact federal drought legislation or other legislation that would benefit water supply availability in Fresno 
County and the San Joaquin Valley; and 

4. That the Governor be requested to notify the City of Kerman of any and all actions, orders, negotiations and 
discussions undertaken on behalf of advancing the points enumerated above; and  

5. That the Governor be requested to continue to make available any and all State assistance programs and seek 
additional Federal assistance programs to provide relief to the individuals, growers, businesses, public agencies, and 
private agencies that were harmed by this disaster; and  

6. A copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Governor of California, the State Water Resources Control Board and 
the Director of the State Office of Emergency Services. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 20th day of May 
2015 and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
The forgoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill 
 Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

43



   
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 20, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreement for Auditing Services for Fiscal Years 2014/15 Through 2018/2019 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council review summary of proposals and by motion adopt resolution for auditing services and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the Engagement Letter. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Annually the City of Kerman is required to have an audit from an independent auditor to review the City’s internal 
processes and controls and certify all of the financial records for the City are accurately recorded. The audit is 
required for the State Controllers Officer, the Fresno County Auditor Controller along with other outside agencies, 
and for confirmation that Federal and State Grants requirements are being adhered to. Additionally the independent 
audit is used by firms such as Standards and Poors to rate the City’s overall credit rating.  
 
A long-term working relationship between the City and the independent auditing firm is important because of the 
familiarity the auditor has with the City’s records, long-term debt, and overall structure and policies which helps 
expedite the audit. Internally, the goal of the Finance Department is to have the audit to Council by the second 
meeting in November.  
 
The City of Kerman sent out an RFP to four auditing firms used by other cities similar in size. The RFP was sent to: 
 

• Bryant Jolley, CPA 
• Sampson, Sampson & Patterson 
• Price Paige & Company 
• Borchardt, Corona & Faeth 

 
Of the four proposals sent, three (3) firms responded; Borchardt, Corona & Faeth declined to quote due to their 
current client commitments. A committee of four individuals opened and reviewed the proposals; Councilwoman 
Armstrong, City Clerk Marci Reyes, Asst. Finance Director, City of Huron, Carolina Camacho and Finance Director 
Toni Jones. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
 

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City of Kerman entered into a five (5) year contract with Bryant Jolley beginning in Fiscal Year 2007/08 followed 
by two (2) one year agreements for Fiscal years 2012/13 and 2013/14. Prior to FY 2007/08, the City’s independent 
auditor was Sampson & Sampson for at least ten (10) years. The audit services provided by Bryant Jolley’s firm are 
very thorough; annually reviewing Council minutes and ensuring that staff is following policies adopted by Council, 
testing internal controls based on established City policies and best business practice, reviewing the City’s annual 
budget to ensure compliance, and reviewing revenue and expense receipts to confirm all transactions are recorded 
properly. The cost for the fiscal year 2013/14 audit paid to Bryant Jolley was $30,100. 
 
All three firms that responded are competent firms with considerable experience auditing cities. The following is a 
breakdown of the fees from each of the three firms. 
 
Price, Paige & Company 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
City Audit    21,600    21,600   22,248   22,248   22,915  110,611 
Succ. Agency     1,920     1,920    1,978    1,978    2,037    9,833 
Single Audit     3,600     3,600    3,708    3,708    3,819   18,435 
State Reports     3,840     3,840    3,955    3,955    4,074   19,664 
Total   $30,960   $30,960  $31,889  $31,889  $32,845 $158,543 
 
Based on a telephone conversation with Price Paige during the bid opening, once the Successor Agency to the 
Redevelopment Agency dissolves (FY 16/17) the fee for the Successor Agency will not be charged. Additionally 
according to the managing partner, he indicated the threshold for single audits will be raised in FY 16/17 and if the 
City does not reach the $750,000 Federal minimum award cap, a single audit will not be required and therefore not 
charged.  
 
Beginning in FY 14/15 a new report based on GASB 68 guidelines must be included in the audit. The Finance 
Director contacted Price Paige and inquired if that fee was included in their standard audit fee and he said it was 
not. The additional cost for the report is $1,750 but the City will only be charged the first year. Below is the adjusted 
table based on additional information received: 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
Succ Agency   Same   Same    -1,978    -1,978 -2,037   -5,993 
Single Audit   Same    Same    -3,708    -3,708 -3,819  -11,235 
GASB 68   $1,750    N/C     N/C     N/C   N/C    1,750 
Revised Total  $32,710  $30,960  $26,203  $26,203 $26,989 $143,065 
 
Sampson, Sampson & Patterson 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
City Audit    32,500    32,500    33,400   34,400   35,600  168,400 
Succ. Agency     3,000     3,000     3,100    3,150    3,200   15,450 
Single Audit     4,000     4,000     4,000    4,200    4,200   20,400 
State Reports     5,000     5,000     5,000    5,000    5,000   25,000 
Total   $44,500   $44,500   $45,500  $46,750  $48,000 $229,250 

 
 

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
Bryant Jolley 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
City Audit    28,500    29,000    29,500   30,000    31,500  148,500 
Succ. Agency   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included  Included 
Single Audit     3,500    3,500    3,500    3,500     3,500   17,500 
State Reports     1,500    1,500    1,500    1,500     1,500    7,500 
Total   $33,500  $34,000  $34,500  $35,000   $36,500 $173,500 

 
Based on a telephone conversation with Ryan Jolley, Engagement Manager, during the bid opening, Bryant Jolley’s 
firm does not charge the City for a single audit if one is required in a certain year; the cost is absorbed into their 
regular audit fees. Ryan Jolley indicated he should have reduced the regular fees by the amount of the single audit 
in order to list the cost for the single audit as required in the RFP. Below is the adjusted table based on the 
information provided by Ryan Jolley. 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
Single Audit    -3,500    -3,500    -3,500    -3,500    -3,500   -17,500 
Revised Total   $30,000  $30,500  $31,000  $31,500   $33,000 $156,000 

 
In the past, Bryant Jolley’s firm absorbs any additional reporting costs as part of their normal auditing fees and do 
not charge the City. For instance, GASB 68 is a new requirement for FY 2014/15 and I confirmed with Bryant 
Jolley’s firm they will not change the City extra to comply with this new regulation. From time to time the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) implements new reporting requirements on the City and our 
auditors. Bryant Jolley’s firm has historically absorbed these costs and adhere to the “not to exceed” cost for 
performing the audit, even when GASB requires additional reporting. This practice helps the City stay within the 
budgeted amount for the audit 
 
The City finance staff appreciates the auditing style approach used by Bryant Jolley’s firm; the majority of the testing 
is done electronically in advance of the field work followed by several accountants in house at one time to complete 
the field work. This approach is simpler for the Finance staff to manage because they typically only have to set aside 
one week to complete the majority of the field work. 
 
The Finance staff contacted another like sized City that is currently using Price Paige & Company. Although they 
said their audits were done very thoroughly, the field work at the City was spread out over several weeks. If the City 
contracts with Price Paige and Company this could affect the Finance Departments goal of having the audit to 
Council by the second meeting in November following the close of the fiscal year on June 30th. 
 
Although there is a slight cost difference annually, there is a value in additional staff time that will be required if there 
is a change in auditing firms. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The cost for a five (5) year contract will range from $143,065 to $156,000 paid annually.  The difference in the cost 
comparing Bryant Jolley to Price Paige is $12,935 over five years or $2,587 more per year. 

  

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Bryant Jolley, CPA Proposal  
B. Price, Paige & Company 
C. Resolution w/Exhibit 

 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Bryant Jolley Proposal 
 

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES 

 
April 9, 2015 
 
Toni Jones, Finance Director 
City of Kerman 
850 S. Madera Avenue 
Kerman, CA 93630 
 
We are pleased to provide this response to the City of Kerman’s, request for proposal for an independent accounting 
firm to provide audit and related financial services for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 
2019. 
 
We understand the scope of work will include Audited Financial Statements for the City of Kerman, a Single Audit if 
applicable, Controller Reports and a Management Report. We also understand the audit and reports are to be 
conducted in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards as set forth by the General 
Accounting Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing Standards and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Finally, we understand the 
objective of the services to be performed and commit to performing those services within the time period specified by 
the City of Kerman.  
 
We have specialized in the auditing of cities and special districts over the past 30 years and have performed over 400 
district and city audits. Our firm consists of five professional staff who have over seventy years combined 
governmental auditing experience making us premier auditors of local governments. We have provided quality audits 
and assistance to City staff over the years we have been engaged as the City auditor.  
 
We seek to conduct the City audit because we feel our experience and expertise with government audits makes us a 
perfect fit for the engagement. We can provide value to the City through the quality of our work, the timeliness of our 
performance, our knowledge of governments, team consistency, and, most important, a strong relationship among 
the people on our team and with City staff.  
 
In the following proposal, you will see that our firm is capable of consistently delivering high levels of value to the City. 
You will work with an auditor that is stable and responsive. You will receive accurate, reliable, and timely service that 
is fairly priced. In addition, you will have continual access to senior-level team members who are knowledgeable, 
qualified, and consistent.  
 
Bryant L. Jolley, CPA will serve as the principle contact authorized to make representations on behalf of this bid. This 
proposal is firm and irrevocable offer for 30 days. He can be reached by phone at 559-659-3045 or by mail at 901 “N” 
Street, Suite 104, Kerman, CA 93622. 
     
We are eager to continue performing the City’s audit and demonstrating our commitment to providing a cost-effective, 
high-quality audit of the City. We look forward to your response and meeting with you to further discuss a possible 
relationship. Thank you for your consideration. 

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
Bryant L. Jolley, CPA  
 
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 
 
Our firm is independent of the City of Kerman as defined by the U.S. General Accounting Office’s Government 
Auditing Standards. Our firm is licensed to operate as a certified public accounting firm by the State of California. All 
professional staff is properly licensed to practice in California. We are an Equal Opportunity Employer. Our firm 
maintains professional liability, workers’ compensation, and automobile insurance. 
 
Our firm consists of three CPA’s who have over seventy years combined governmental auditing experience making 
us premier auditors of local governments. Because of the size of our firm and the experience of the individuals, all 
three members of our firm will be involved in this engagement.  
 
Our firm is in compliance with all GAO standards for continuing education and we recently completed a peer-review 
of our work, which included government engagements, by an independent CPA firm.  
 
The people who serve you today will be the people who serve you tomorrow. Our firm’s turnover rate is 0%, which 
ensures continuity on your engagement. Our firm only consists of senior level members who have significant years of 
governmental experience. Your engagement team will not contain staff accountants nor will you have to train new 
audit team members in succeeding years. We highly emphasize senior level involvement because these are the team 
members who know the most about you and your operations. Their involvement assures quick resolution of issues, 
better job management, closer supervision, and expeditious review of work papers. These are the people who will 
remain consistently committed to your engagement.  
 
The following information outlines the qualifications and experience of the individuals who would be assigned to the 
engagement. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS OF YOUR AUDIT TEAM 
 
BRYANT JOLLEY, CPA #23890E 
AUDIT ROLE: CLIENT SERVICE PARTNER/ENGAGEMENT REVIEWER 
Bryant Jolley will be the in-charge person for the City audit. He has been a licensed CPA since 1976 and has 
operated his own firm since 1980. He graduated from Brigham Young University in 1974 and did graduate accounting 
studies at the University of Southern California. His initial training as an auditor was with Deloitte Touche, an 
international CPA firm. The first governmental audit he performed was in 1979 and he has been extensively engaged 
in governmental accounting since that date. He is the in charge person on an average of thirty city or special district 
audits each year. This experience allows him to have a unique understanding of the accounting and fiscal problems 
facing governmental units and provide concrete recommendations to improve overall efficiencies. He has received 
over 80 hours of government-specific continuing professional education over the last two years and is a member of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the California Society of Certified Public Accountants. 
  
DARRYL SMITH, CPA #90152 
AUDIT ROLE: ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
Darryl Smith is a licensed certified public accountant who joined the firm in 1982. Since that time, he has worked 
closely with Bryant Jolley on all audit engagements including approximately 150 governmental audits. Additionally, he 
has helped many cities and districts with temporary accounting projects or other operational emergencies. This has 
provided him with extensive working knowledge of the commonly used governmental accounting software programs 
and allows him to be available for normal accounting questions or assistance throughout the year. He is a member of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
 
RYAN JOLLEY, CPA #93675 
AUDIT ROLE: ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
Ryan Jolley is a licensed certified public accountant who joined our firm in 2004. He graduated with an undergraduate 
degree in accounting in 2002 and entered the Master’s program in accounting at San Diego State University the 
same year. During this period, he started work as a staff auditor with Moss Adams LLP, a large national CPA firm. He 
interned with our firm for several summers during college and worked on numerous governmental audits. He was the 
primary senior non-profit/governmental auditor for the Moss Adams San Diego office. Since then he has worked 
extensively with several cities helping them with the GASB 34 conversion process. He has over 12 years of 
experience with auditing municipalities, colleges, and commercial entities as well as conducting Single Audits under 
OMB Circular A-133 standards.  
 
OUR EXPERIENCE AUDITING GOVERNMENT ENTITIES 
 
City of Angels 
Principal Contacts: Julie McManus, Finance Director (209-736-2181) 
Engagement Dates: June 30, 2006 - 2014 
Approximate Staff Hours Expended: 200 hours/year 
Scope of Work: Audited Financial Statements, Annual Financial Transaction Report 
        
City of San Juan Bautista 
Principal Contacts: Roger Grimsley, City Manager (831-623-4661) 
Engagement Dates: June 30, 2008 to 2014 
Approximate Staff Hours Expended: 160 hours/year 
Scope of Work: Audited Financial Statements, Annual Financial Transaction Report 
 
City of Orange Cove 
Principal Contacts: Lan Bui, Finance Director (559-626-4488) 
Engagement Dates: June 30, 2004 to 2014 
Approximate Staff Hours Expended: 250 hours/year 
Scope of Work: Audited Financial Statements, Annual Financial Transaction Report 
 
City of Coalinga 
Principal Contacts: Mari Jimenez, Finance Director (559-935-1531)    
Engagement Dates: June 30, 2004 to 2014 
Approximate Staff Hours Expended: 300 hours/year 
Scope of Work: Audited Financial Statements, Annual Financial Transaction Report 
 
City of Livingston 
Principal Contacts: Odi Ortiz, Finance Director (209-394-8041)   
Engagement Dates: June 30, 2006 to 2014 
Approximate Staff Hours to be Expended: 300 hours/year 
Scope of Work: Audited Financial Statements, Annual Financial Transaction Report 
 
Note: Eight additional Cities we audit separate from the above available upon request. 
  

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
HOW WE APPROACH YOUR AUDIT 
 
Our effective and efficient government audit approach combines knowledge of governmental accounting and auditing 
with an understanding of the associated risks. We are value-driven and seek to maximize the return on your 
investment in the audit process through in-depth analysis of your financial statements and your internal controls. 
Throughout the engagement, our team will collaborate with your staff whenever possible to minimize costs and 
improve efficiencies. Of course, we will need assistance with preparing schedules, finding documents, explaining 
processes, and providing sample documentation, budget related materials, organizational charts, and manuals.  
  
Audit Standards 
The auditor’s opinion will be directed toward the fairness of presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS). We will prepare the Annual Financial Report in conformity with 
Government Code Section 26909, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and Government Auditing 
Standards (GAGAS) issued by the Comptroller General of the United States General Accounting Office.  
 
Pre-Audit 
We are very familiar with the audit issues facing government entities. We have adjusted our audit services to 
incorporate these specialized areas and approach the audit from the following aspects: 
  

• Where are the City’s greatest exposures? 
• How does the City safeguard against risks? 
• How does the City internally evaluate its organization? 
• What are the controls used by the City to measure accountability? 

 
Our approach to the City’s audit is truly a design that will be as unique as the City itself and is based on the areas we 
find to be the most vulnerable. Our focus includes evaluating internal controls that ensure adherence to applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations. We place a substantial amount of our time reviewing and assessing such 
high-risk areas during our evaluation. This risk-based approach focuses our efforts on what is important to you and 
your stakeholders and enables us to present you with meaningful suggestions. 
 
We monitor our performance using a variety of qualitative and quantitative measures. First and foremost, we honor 
our agreement with you, completing the engagement on-time and on-budget. When you talk to our references, you 
will find that this sets us apart from most regional and national CPA firms. Typically, in a first year audit engagement, 
we invest additional time in your audit, which is not billed to you as cost over-runs. Rather, we view it as an 
investment in our long-term professional relationship. 
 
We measure our audit performance in the response we receive from the City and its staff. In addition, we report 
directly to management and the Board in face-to-face meetings, providing meaningful information and answering 
questions directly. 
 
Segmentation of the Audit 
Our audit involves a logical sequence of five steps that ensures compliance with the applicable professional 
standards and the expeditious completion of the audit. We will tailor our audit to the needs and complexity of the City.  
 
1. Planning – First, we learn everything we can about the City and its related organizations - from 

organizational structure to policies and procedures. We read meeting minutes, review budgets, assess 
manuals and programs, hold discussions with key management staff, and evaluate management information 
systems. Based on what we learn, we develop our expectations regarding current year results, and then 

51



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

compare our expectations to actual results. This helps us develop risk assessments for each audit segment 
to determine what level of control testing and/or substantive testing is necessary to address the assessed 
risk. We then design our audit program accordingly. 

 
2. Control Testing – Depending on our risk assessments, we determine specific audit cycles to test for internal 

controls and we evaluate the results. Based on the results against our expectations, we then determine if any 
modification is necessary to our planned substantive audit procedures on ending account balances and 
transactions. Based on the information we have obtained to date, we plan to test controls to obtain moderate 
to substantial reliance over cash and investments, revenues and related receivables, expenses and related 
payables, capital outlay, and long-term debt. This is subject to change once we gather more information as 
part of our audit planning procedures. 
 

3. Substantive Testing – Our overall objective is to achieve a low level of risk of error in ending account 
balances. After we have performed our preliminary analytical and internal control tests and evaluated the 
results, we determine the nature, timing, and extent of detailed audit procedures on ending account balances 
and transactions necessary to achieve a low level of risk that errors could be present without detection. 

 
4. Compliance Testing – The State requires testing organizational compliance with certain laws and 

regulations. In addition, we will test your compliance with federal laws. We have specially-designed audit 
programs that ensure we adequately address both areas.  

 
5. Report Writing and Review – After all the fieldwork is complete, we draft our opinions and other reports. As 

part of our firm’s quality control process, Bryant Jolley is required to review our audit files and report to 
improve the quality of our audits and to ensure optimum quality. We have a requirement that only personnel 
involved in our governmental service team can be involved in the review of our work. This ensures that our 
clients are served with professionals trained in governmental auditing and accounting standards. 

6. Statistical Sampling - Sampling to be used during our audit will include random sampling methods for tests of 
controls and for substantive tests of details. Sampling will be used throughout the engagement to test most 
financial statement balances. 
 
We will select the most appropriate sampling technique for a given compliance test, tailored to the type and 
nature of the test.  
 

7. Analytical Procedures - Analytical procedures are generally performed throughout the audit engagement, 
and result in substantial discussion with management. Initially, at the planning phase of the audit, 
comparisons are made between current and prior year results, actual and budgetary information, and to 
industry benchmarks. We use common size financial statements and trend and ratio analyses to aid us in 
developing our audit plan and programs. Non-financial data and external information are incorporated in our 
procedures to enhance their validity, and information is disaggregated as much as possible to improve 
precision. 
 
During our substantive testing of balances, we typically analyze the detail of changes to certain accounts. 
For example, this approach is often used with sampling in our testing of capital asset, long-term debt and 
investment accounts.  
 
At the conclusion of the audit, we again employ analytical procedures similar to those used at the planning 
phase. The audit team takes a holistic view of the financial statements in light of the results of all other 
auditing procedures performed. We discuss our observations with management and provide information to 

52



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

the Board as part of our audit result presentation. Our clients find this to be the most important value of their 
annual audit process. It produces beneficial information far beyond the audit of the financial statements they 
initially expect. 

 
AUDIT: Documenting internal control structure 
 

• Obtain copies of all available system and policy/procedure documentation from City finance, treasury, human 
resources, information technology, grant management, budget department, and personnel. This will include 
organization charts, narratives and flowcharts. Copies will be retained in our permanent working paper file. 
This documentation will be updated annually for any changes. 

• Review the above-described documentation and meet with City personnel to make inquiries about, and 
discuss questions that arise from, our review.  

• Document and assess the adequacy of internal controls over the various City systems, and develop 
preliminary risk assessments for each of them. As mentioned earlier in our discussion of audit approach, the 
framework of this system incorporates the requirements of auditing standards related to internal control and 
fraud detection. 

 
At the planning phase of our audit and in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) 99, Consideration 
of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit, we will hold a brainstorming meeting to discuss fraud risks related to the City 
and design the audit to take those risks into account. Provisions of this new and important auditing standard will be 
incorporated throughout our audit. 
  

53



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

COST PROPOSAL 
Submitted By: 
Firm Name: Bryant L. Jolley, CPA 
 
I hereby certify that the undersigned is authorized to represent the firm stated above, and empowered to submit this 
bid, and if selected authorized to sign a contract with the City, for the services identified in the Request for Proposals. 
 
Signature: Signature on Original Proposal Received 
 
Printed Name: Bryant L. Jolley  Date: April 9, 2015 
 
Our services will include the City audit, GANN Limit Review, preparation of the audited financial statements, 
Controllers Reports and a Management Report. The all-inclusive fee for this work is as follows: 
 

Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 5 Yr Total 
City Audit    28,500    29,000    29,500   30,000    31,500  148,500 
Succ. Agency   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included  Included 
Single Audit     3,500    3,500    3,500    3,500     3,500   17,500 
State Reports     1,500    1,500    1,500    1,500     1,500    7,500 
Total   $33,500  $34,000  $34,500  $35,000   $36,500 $173,500 

 
This proposal is made with the assumption that the City’s books and records will be in a reasonably balanced 
condition and reconciled at the start of the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you 
and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. We agree the City may broaden the scope of 
our engagement and we agree to hold ourselves available to perform such additional work as the City may desire. A 
final billing will be submitted upon delivery of all required reports. No billings will be made for out-of-pocket expenses 
or any other expenses such as typing, clerical, printing and travel costs. 
 
Below is our Hourly Rate Schedule for hourly charges for professional services rendered in relation to any additional 
services that may be requested by the City. Most often, larger additional projects have negotiated maximums. Should 
you require such services, we would be pleased to discuss them with you. 
 
    Hourly Rates  
Partner  $200 
Managers $175 
Staff  $140 
  

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Price Paige & Company Proposal 
 
 

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

57



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 17 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 18 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 19 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 20 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 21 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 22 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 23 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 24 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 25 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 26 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 27 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 28 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 29 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 30 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 31 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 
AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN BRYANT L. JOLLEY, CPA (‘AUDITOR’) AND THE CITY OF KERMAN 
FOR AUDITING SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014/2015 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 

 
WHEREAS, Bryant L. Jolley, CPA (‘Auditor’) and the City of Kerman (‘City’) wish to enter into a 

five year agreement for auditing services. 
 

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman that the City has 
reviewed the Proposal to Provide Professional Auditing Services between Bryant L. Jolley, CPA (‘Auditor’) 
and the City of Kerman (‘City’), and authorize the City Manager to sign the engagement letter attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A’,.  
 
The foregoing resolution was approved and adopted by the City Council of the City of Kerman at a regular 
meeting held on the 20th day of May 2015, by the following vote: 
 
       AYES:  
       NAYS:  
    ABSENT:  
   ABSTAIN: 

  
        _____________________________ 
      Stephen B. Hill 
      Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 
 

  

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 32 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 
Exhibit ‘A’ 

  

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 33 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
  

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 34 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
  

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 35 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 
  

78



City Council Staff Report   Page 36 of 36 
Auditor Request for Proposal  
 

 

79



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

  MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
  Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
  COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 20, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Second Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council review the preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 and make any recommendations for 
changes. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Following discussion at the May 6th Council meeting staff made changes to the preliminary budget taking into 
consideration other department personnel requests and is resubmitting the preliminary budget for further comments 
or recommendations for changes. Staff also prepared a 5-Year Financial Forecast based on the preliminary budget 
presented in order to provide a long term perspective. 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

The General Fund is the general operating budget for the City’s core services including City Council, City Manager, 
City Clerk, Police, Planning & Development, Public Works, and Parks, Recreation and Community Services. 
Revenues to cover these general operating expenditures come primarily from sales and property tax, which comprise 
79% of all revenues to the General Fund. The balance is collected from franchise taxes, building permits, rents, and 
miscellaneous fees.  
 
The largest investment of General Fund revenues goes to the Police Department (65%) followed by Parks, 
Recreation and Community Services (15%), Legislation & General Government (10%), Planning and Development 
(6%) and Public Works (3.4%). The commitment to law enforcement and recreation is reflected in the community’s 
low crime rates and high youth and adult participation in recreational programs and activities. The Proposed General 
Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 continues to reinforce this commitment with the addition of a new police officer along 
with filing the Community Services Secretary position that has been vacant through attrition. Also included are other 
department needs such as a part-time Permit Tech in the Planning and Building Department along with funding for a 
Contract Planner to assist the City Manager, who has been simultaneously serving as the Planning & Development 
Director, and with the recent increase in development projects a contract planner is needed to focus attention in this 
area. 

80



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 4 
Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 

As reflected in Attachment ‘A’, the Proposed General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 shows the estimated 
year-end numbers for the current fiscal year as well as the budgeted numbers for next fiscal year. The City is 
expected to end the current fiscal year with a surplus of approximately $105,985. This is slightly more than the 
projected surplus of $53,476 included in the Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget. This indicates that the City has 
done a good job projecting revenues conservatively and managing expenditures throughout the fiscal year. With a 
projected surplus of $105,985 as of June 30, 2015, the City is expected to increase the General Fund Reserves from 
$2,616,040 to $2,722,025. Once again, the City expects to the end the fiscal year in a good financial position. 
 
The Proposed General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 reflects revenues of $4,403,225 and expenditures of 
$4,583,531 with a deficit of $180,306. The proposed budget includes additional full time staffing positions, other 
increases due to personnel costs (1% COLA effective July 1st), a 9.4% health insurance premium increase and 
employer contributions to CalPERS for the plans unfunded liability. 
. 
General Fund revenues are projected to be $4,403,225 in FY 2015/16, slightly higher, 1.9%, than the $4,320,234 
budgeted in FY 2014/15. The increase is primarily due to a minor projected increase to property taxes. Based on 
information from our sales tax consultant, MuniServices, growth in sales tax revenue is not projected in FY 2015/16 
due to the ending of the triple-flip in August of this year. According to MuniServices the City should expect lower 
sales tax receipts as the state winds up the triple-flip in FY 2016/17 through FY 2017/18.  
 
As noted in the 5-Year Financial Forecast, revenues will be in excess over expenditures beginning in FY 2019/20. It 
is important to note that these projections are a snapshot in time and assume that there is not another downturn in 
the economy and that there are no major changes in existing wages or benefits resulting from collective bargaining 
agreements. 
 
In summary, although the Proposed General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 has a deficit of $180,306 the Council could 
transfer in revenues from the General Fund Reserves. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 ‘A’ – Proposed General Fund Summary of Operational Budgets for FY 2015/16 
       ‘B’ – 5-Year Financial Forecast Fiscal Years 2015/16 – 2020/21 
 
 
  

81



City Council Staff Report                             Page 3 of 4 
Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Proposed General Fund Summary of Operational Budgets for FY 2015/16 

 2014/2015
Adopted vs 
Proposed Exp % of

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget $ Total GF
Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016 Change Revenue
LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT.

6001 City Council $21,676 $21,989 $30,040 $29,490 $27,165 ($2,875)
6003 City Attorney 51,242            59,986           55,000          55,000          75,000           $20,000
1002 General Administration 149,782          228,773         220,138        204,866        202,608         ($17,531)
5005 Administrative Services 75,796            98,038           112,378        112,722        122,592         $10,214
6004 City Clerk 21,896            27,605           32,620          29,985          32,053           ($566)

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT. 320,392          436,390         450,176        432,063        459,417         $9,242 10.4%

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
1008 Planning 17,338            101,707         120,728        104,946        184,066         $63,338
1010 Engineering 7,610              40,276           25,000          25,000          25,000           $0
1042 Building 133,830          128,565         131,009        153,345        121,441         ($9,568)

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 158,778          270,549         276,737        283,291        330,508         $53,771 7.5%

RECREATION/SOCIAL SERVICES
2002 Recreation Administration 225,442          234,547         235,416        234,916        290,038         $54,622
2010 Building Maintenance 42,433            45,802           62,672          60,130          151,695         $89,023
2044 Senior Center Services 123,303          109,487         111,991        114,691        120,333         $8,342
2047 Aquatics Program 25,966            21,779           25,297          28,697          42,219           $16,922
2062 Planned Recreation 26,617            22,556           33,224          33,359          33,392           $169
2065 Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270            37,521           54,230          55,231          55,952           $1,722
2069 Community Teen Center 119,758          129,628         125,811        125,901        56,703           ($69,108)

  TOTAL REC/SOC SERVICES 604,788          601,320         648,641        652,925        750,331         $101,690 17.0%
               

POLICE OPERATIONS
3011 Police Operations 2,415,633       2,483,503      2,705,938     2,703,142     2,836,337      $130,399
3041 Animal Control 34,368            56,209           60,791          61,287          58,312           ($2,479)

  TOTAL POLICE OPERATIONS 2,450,001       2,539,711      2,766,729     2,764,429     2,894,649      $127,920 65.7%

PUBLIC WORKS
4010 Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,626         $24,150

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,626         $24,150 3.4%
                

  TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS           3,683,344       3,993,035      4,266,758     4,259,963     4,583,531      $316,773 104.1%
 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,028,260       4,159,527      4,320,234     4,365,949     4,403,225      $82,991

EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES $344,916 $166,492 $53,476 $105,985 ($180,306)

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL G/F REVENUE 8.56% 4.00% 1.24% 2.43% -4.09%

250,000         175,000        175,000        100,000         
EXCESS (DEFICIT) AFTER TRANSFER IN FROM S/A 416,492         228,476        280,985        (80,306)          

TRANSFER IN FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY (S/A)

82



City Council Staff Report                             Page 4 of 4 
Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

5-Year Financial Forecast Fiscal Years 2015/16 – 2020/21 
 

 

Proposed
FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

GF Revenues:

Sales Tax (1) 1,794,000    1,856,790    1,921,778    1,989,040    2,058,656    2,130,709    

Property Tax (2) 1,670,000    1,720,100    1,771,703    1,824,854    1,879,600    1,935,988    

Other Revenue 939,225      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      

Total Revenue 4,403,225    4,507,492    4,624,083    4,744,496    4,868,858    4,997,299    

% Change 2.37% 2.59% 2.60% 2.62% 2.64%

Proposed
GF Expenses: FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

Personnel (3) 3,215,239    3,255,607    3,300,875    3,339,683    3,373,778    3,386,517    

Operations & Maintenance (4) 1,368,292    1,382,260    1,407,510    1,432,765    1,458,023    1,483,282    

Total Expenses 4,583,531    4,637,868    4,708,385    4,772,447    4,831,801    4,869,800    

% Change 1.19% 1.52% 1.36% 1.24% 0.79%

Excess Revenue Over 
Expenditures

(180,306)     (130,375)     (84,302)       (27,951)       37,057        127,499      

GF Reserve Balance Estimate 2,435,734    2,305,359    2,221,057    2,193,106    2,230,163    2,357,662    

Assumptions:
1. Sales tax revenues are projected at 3.47% annually based on projections provided by MuniServices.

2. Property tax revenues are projected at 3% annually based on historical growth.
3. Personnel expenses include normal merit increases without COLA's or other benefits.

4. Operations and maintenance expenses are estimated to increase 2% annually based on historical data.

ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED

83



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 20, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Presentation of Preliminary Enterprise Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council to review the preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/16 and make any recommendations 
for changes. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Staff has prepared the preliminary Enterprise Fund budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/16. The proposed budgets are 
structurally balanced with revenues slightly in excess of expenditures. Staff proposed a slight increase to utility rates 
at the April 1, 2015 Council meeting. Council set a public hearing for June 3, 2015 to consider the proposed utility 
rate increases and if approved on June 3rd the rates will take effect on July 1, 2015. Staff recommended the following 
utility rate increases:  
Water 
Fifty cent (.50) increase with twenty-five cents (.25) set aside in a meter reserve fund for future meter replacements 
and twenty-five cents (.25) to cover the increase of ongoing operational expenes. The City has an average of 3,300 
accounts x .25 = $825 per month or $9,900 per year proposed additional revenue. 
Additionally staff proposed an increase on the cost per 1,000 gallons; an increase of .0144 cents from .7956 to .81. 
Based on a twelve month average of 54,600,000 gallons used per month on metered customers, the increase is 
estimated at $786 per month or $9,435 annually. 
Sewer 
Seventy-five cent (.75) increase to cover the debt service obligation and ongoing operational expenes. The proposed 
additional revenue is 3,300 accounts x .75 = $2,475 per month or $29,700 per year. 
Solid Waste 
Seventeen cent (.17) increase based on the City’s contract with Mid Valley Disposal 
Street Sweeping 
Five cent (.05) increase to cover ongoing operational expenses. The proposed additional revenue is 3,300 accounts x 
.05 = $165 per month or $1,980 per year. 
  

84



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 3 
Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  
Storm Drain 
Five cent (.05) increase to cover ongoing operational expenses. The proposed additional revenue is 3,300 accounts x 
.05 = $165 per month or $1,980 per year. 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Enterprise Funds provide basic services to the residents of Kerman and are comprised of water, sewer, solid waste, 
street sweeping and storm drain. Revenues to cover the operating expenditures for these services come from the 
collection of fees billed for the services provided. Annually, the City reviews the revenues and expenditures and 
determines if a rate increase is necessary to cover the cost for services. If staff recommends a rate increase Prop 218 
requires the City to notify property owners and tenants of the proposed rate increase that Council is considering. The 
public is provided the public hearing date to give them the opportunity to discuss the proposed rates the Council is 
considering.  
 
The Enterprise budgets include one additional full-time maintenance worker at the waste water treatment plant, a 1% 
COLA, a 9.4% health insurance cost increase along with normal merit increases for employees not at the top step of the 
pay scale. 
 
The Water fund is projecting a surplus of $87,659 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 and a $63,401 surplus for fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2016. The water department is working with City Engineers on the Prop 84 grant that will provide 
meters for 665 residential customers, leaving approximately 500 residential properties without meters. The City is 
required to install a minimum of 665 meters to comply with the grant. Staff is anticipating the water fund will need to 
contribute approximately $250,000 from water reserves along with the grant for $725,000 to complete the project.  
 
The Sewer fund is projecting a slight surplus of $54,182 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 and an $117,100 surplus for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. The Waste Water treatment facility was expanded in 2012 and received a State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan of nearly $5 million. Annual debt service payments (principle and interest) of nearly $235,000 
are required and the loan will be paid off in 2031.  
 
Initially when the WWTP facility was expanded, it was proposed 50% of the loan payment would be paid from Sewer 
Development Impact Fees. When both commercial and residential development sharply declined due to the economic 
downturn, Development Impact Fees were affected and funds were not available for the debt service payment. During 
fiscal year 2014/15 the City collected enough Sewer Major Facility impact fees to pay $75,000 of the total $234,000 debt 
service payment.  
 
In addition to the debt service, operational costs on the newly expanded plant have been higher than expected, 
specifically, utility costs and on-going maintenance costs. 
 
The City contracts with Mid Valley Disposal for solid waste collection. Based on the contract for services, rates are 
increased annually based on 80% of the CPI, urban wage earners and clerical workers, Los Angeles. The contract with 
Mid Valley Disposal is a ten (10) year contract that will expire August 2018. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 ‘A’ – Summary of Enterprise Fund Operational Budgets  

85



City Council Staff Report                             Page 3 of 3 
Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Summary of Enterprise Fund Operational Budgets for FY 2015/16 
 

 

2014/15
 Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget

Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

WATER FUND (410)
Total Water Fund Revenues 1,581,159 1,645,636 1,597,500 1,546,500 1,571,500

5005 Water Administration & Accounting 407,769      394,499             404,721             397,807             442,112             
5006 Water - Debt Service 165,000      165,000             165,000             165,000             165,000             
4041 Water Operations 810,645      859,445             924,640             896,035             900,987             

Total Water Fund Operations 1,383,414   1,418,943          1,494,361          1,458,841          1,508,099          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 197,745      226,693             103,139             87,659               63,401               

SEWER FUND (420)
Total Sewer Fund Revenues 1,298,383 1,434,170 1,440,500 1,519,886 1,533,300

5005 Sewer Administration & Accounting 334,641      351,511             323,547             320,234             350,677             
5006 Sewer - Debt Service 199,295      202,286             347,907             343,407             265,908             
4042 Sewer Operations 815,192      672,380             761,584             802,063             799,615             

Total Sewer Fund Operations 1,349,128   1,226,177          1,433,038          1,465,704          1,416,200          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures (50,745)       207,994             7,462                 54,182               117,100             

SOLID WASTE (430)
Total Solid Waste Fund Revenues 1,063,192 1,088,410 1,087,580 1,119,650 1,128,212

5005 Solid Waste Administration & Accounting 974,144      1,042,768          1,083,124          1,097,708          1,083,508          
Total Solid Waste Fund Operations 974,144      1,042,768          1,083,124          1,097,708          1,083,508          

Revenue & Transfer in Excess of Expenditures 89,049        45,642               4,456                 21,942               44,704               
 
STORM DRAIN OPERATIONS FUND (470)
Total Storm Drain Operation Revenues 82,097 67,192 69,400 71,200 73,180

4047 Storm Drain Maintenance & Operations 63,330        65,959               72,565               71,125               71,467               
Total Storm Drain Fund Operations 63,330        65,959               72,565               71,125               71,467               

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 18,767        1,234                 (3,165)                75                      1,713                 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE 4,024,832   4,235,408          4,194,980          4,257,236          4,306,192          

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENDITURES 3,770,015   3,753,847          4,083,088          4,093,379          4,079,274          
EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE 254,817$    481,561$           111,892$           163,857$           226,918$           

86



1 | P a g e  

 

 
 

May 7, 2015 
 

 

 

The Honorable Jerry Brown 

Governor, State of California 

State Capitol 

Suite 1173 

Sacramento, California 95814 

 

Re: Is This Our California? 

 

 

Dear Governor Brown: 

 

As elected and appointed public officials from the San Joaquin Valley, we are writing because 

this drought and government’s management of limited water supplies has severely jeopardized 

the health and safety of the people we serve. Specifically we want you to know about the 

deteriorating human condition in our communities. Emergency food distribution and bottled 

water funding resulting from the legislation you signed into law on March 27, 2015 is 

appreciated but what we really need is a water supply that creates jobs.  

On April 2 at a press conference at Selma City Hall in Fresno County, twenty of us talked about 

this problem, one which is growing worse by the day. The Valley’s east and west sides are 

enduring zero surface water allocations for the second consecutive year. This cannot continue!  

Our collective job is to address the needs of our constituencies as best we can. That includes the 

delivery of water which we believe can occur through more balanced decision making and better 

management of the water we have. We must keep people employed and a roof over their heads. 

If we don’t, this economic and social catastrophe will scar California for years to come. 

Here is just a little of what we are seeing. A myriad of health and safety dilemmas is quickly 

expanding beyond the limited abilities and resources of local government. Food lines have 

become commonplace. Domestic violence is on the rise. So are other law enforcement problems, 

such as theft and drugs. Large numbers of families have been forced out of their homes. 

Educational opportunities for our children are declining. 

The lack of jobs is only part of the problem. The surface water deficit has created a huge over-

reliance on groundwater use resulting in damaged aquifers, and failed wells at rural residences, 

farms, and in some communities with no water supply at all.  

87



2 | P a g e  

 

Of course, none of us can miraculously make it rain but we look to you, the Legislature and other 

public officials to do everything possible to keep conditions from getting worse which we think 

can be accomplished. There are sources of available water that could be put to the beneficial use 

of people.  

For instance, North state reservoir storage in 2015, while still far below average, is substantially 

improved over what it was in the early spring of 2014. Much of this water is not being allocated 

to human uses but instead is being reserved for other purposes later in 2015 such as temperature 

control and other means of benefitting salmon, delta smelt and other endangered species. There 

are also questions about amounts of this water being set aside to counter saltwater intrusion in 

the Delta.  

In your recent executive order in which you imposed a new 25% water-use reduction on urban 

customers, reductions in environmental consumption of water were not mentioned. In this fourth 

year of drought, all users of water must share in the shortage. Environmental water supplies 

could and should be curtailed up to the 25% level imposed on municipal uses. Environmental 

interests simply have to be as responsible in managing and accounting for water usage as is 

everyone else in California. 

In raising these examples, we are not suggesting that environmental issues be ignored but we are 

asking whether available water is being managed in the most efficient and appropriate way 

possible. In our view, if this is done, there would be additional water that could be moved to the 

Valley. We are asking that you make this happen now. 

Finally, Governor, we cannot accept that this terrible situation is our California. We must meet 

with you immediately to find a more caring, socially responsible pathway. 

In order to coordinate communications with you, please respond to Robert Silva, Mayor, City of 

Mendota at 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640 rsilva@ci.mendota.ca.us or call 559-630-

0861. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

     
Paul Rodriguez, Chair       

California Latino Water Coalition     

   

 

Buddy Mendes, Supervisor    Henry R. Perea, Supervisor    

Fresno County      Fresno County 

 

 

88

mailto:rsilva@ci.mendota.ca.us


3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Deborah A. Poochigian, Supervisor   Steve Worthley, Supervisor 

Fresno County      Tulare County 

 

 
 

Phil Cox, Supervisor and Board Chair   Pete Vanderpoel, Supervisor 
Tulare County      Tulare County 

 

 

 

                     

 

Rick Farinelli, Supervisor    David Rogers, Supervisor 
Madera County      Madera County 

 

                 
Doug Verboon, Supervisor    Richard Valle, Supervisor 

Kings County      Kings County 

             

 

 

 

 

Craig Pederson, Supervisor    Richard Fagundes, Supervisor  

Kings County      Kings County 

 
 

 

 

 

Leticia Perez, Supervisor    Daron McDaniel, Supervisor  

Kern County      Merced County 

 

 

 

 

 

Jerry O’Banion, Supervisor    John Pedrozo, Supervisor  

Merced County      Merced County 

89



4 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Hubert Walsh, Supervisor    Tim Bowers, Superintendent  

Merced County      Kings County 

       

 
 

 

 

Jim Yovino, Superintendent    Dave Robinson, Sheriff 

Fresno County      Kings County  
 

 

 

 

Margaret Mims, Sheriff    Donny Youngblood, Sheriff  

Fresno County       Kern County 

 
   

 

 

 

Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Mayor    David Cardenas, Mayor 

City of San Joaquin     City of Fowler 

Chair, Fresno County Council of Governments                                                                                          
                                                   

 

 

 

Alma Beltran, Mayor     Rodrigo Espinoz, Mayor 

City of Parlier      City of Livingston 
                

 

 

 

 

Ray Soleno, Mayor     Victor Lopez, Mayor  
City of Reedley      City of Orange Cove  

                       

 

 

 

                             

Sylvia Chavez, Mayor    Ron Ramsey, Mayor 

City of Huron      City of Coalinga 

90



5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

                             

Robert Poythress, Mayor    Nathan Magsig, Mayor 

City of Madera      City of Clovis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scott Robinson, Mayor    John Chavez, Mayor 

City of Selma      City of  Chowchilla 

 

 

 

 

 

Craig Knight, Mayor     Stephen Hill, Mayor 

City of Firebaugh     City of Kerman 

 

 

 

 

Jennifer Wood, Mayor    Peggy Breeden, Mayor 

City of California City     City of Ridgecrest  

 

 

 

 

Dennis Brazil, Mayor     Danny Espitia, Mayor 

City of Gustine      City of Wasco 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Russ Curry, Mayor     Harlin Casida, Mayor 

City of Hanford      City of Avenal 

 

 

 

                             

Anita Betancourt, Mayor Pro Tem   Diana Guerra, Mayor Pro Tem 

City of Reedley      City of Orange Cove 

 

91



6 | P a g e  

 

 

                                                                                 

 

Daniel Parra, Mayor Pro Tem    Bruce Blaney, Mayor Pro Tem  

City of Fowler      City of Kingsburg 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Raul Cantu, Mayor Pro Tem    David Ayers, Mayor Pro Tem  

City of Sanger      City of Hanford 

 

 

 
Raul Villanueva, Mayor Pro Tem   Steve Brandau, Councilmember  

City of Parlier      City of Fresno 

 

 
 

  
Mary Fast, Councilmember    Robert Beck, Councilmember 

City of Reedley      City of Reedley 
 

 

 

 

 

Henry Rodriguez, Councilmember   Bob Link, Councilmember 

City of Reedley      City of Visalia 

 

 

 

 

Leonard Hammer, Councilmember   Sandie Monis, Councilmember 

City of Fowler      City of Fowler 

 

 

 

  

 

Gilbert Garcia, Councilmember   Minerva Pineda, Councilmember 

City of Orange Cove     City of Orange Cove 

 

 

92



7 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Josie Cervantes, Councilmember   Francisco Ramirez, Councilmember 

City of Orange Cove     City of Hanford 

 

 

 
 

 

Jerry Dyer, Chief of Police     Michael Brand, Chief of Police 

City of Fresno      City of Fowler  

 

 

      
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

93



8 | P a g e  

 

 

94



9 | P a g e  

 

 

95



10 | P a g e  

 

 

cc:  Members, California State Legislature 

 Members, California State Water Resources Control Board 

 Secretary, California Natural Resources Agency 

 Secretary, California Department of Food and Agriculture 

 Secretary, California Environmental Protection Agency 

 Secretary, California Health and Human Services Agency 

 Attorney General, California Department of Justice 

 Superintendent, California Department of Education 

Director, California Department of Water Resources 

 Director, California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

 United States Senator Dianne Feinstein 

 United States Senator Barbara Boxer 

 Congressman Kevin McCarthy 

 Congressman Devin Nunes 

 Congressman David Valadao 

 Congressman Jim Costa 

 Congressman Jeff Denham 

 Secretary, United States Department of the Interior 

 Secretary, United States Department of Commerce  

 

 

 

Attachments 

96



11 | P a g e  

 

IS THIS OUR CALIFORNIA? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

97



12 | P a g e  

 

 

IS THIS OUR CALIFORNIA? 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



99


	Agenda
	Minutes
	May 6, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Monthly Investment Report Ending April 30, 2015
	Investments-Council

	Proclamation - Proclaiming May 17-23, 2015 as National Public Works Week
	Proclamation

	Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control Board for Possible Use of Public Water System as a Source of Potable Water for Water Haulers
	Staff Report - Request to Sell Potable Water to Certified Water Haulers

	Water Conservation Implementation Plan
	Staff Report - Water Conservation 

	Letter from Fresno County Board of Supervisors Henry Perea, District 3 Requesting Resolution for Support of Central Valley Drought
	Letter Requesting Resolution - Perea

	Resolution Approving Agreement for Auditing Services for Fiscal Years 2014/15 Through 2018/2019
	Staff Report - Auditor RFP

	Second Presentation of General Fund Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016
	Staff Report - Preliminary GF Budget

	Presentation of Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016
	Staff Report - Preliminary Enterprise Budget 

	Letters Endorsed by the Mayor on Behalf of the City - Latino Water Coalition to Governor Brown; Kerman United Health Center
	Letter to Gov. Brown
	Letter Kerman United Health Center


